
Your Community. 
Our Commitment. 

THE PRESERVE AT SOUTH BRANCH 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Regular Meeting 
Advanced Agenda Package 

Date/Time: 
Thursday, February 5, 2026 

4:00 p.m. 

Location: 
Residence Inn Tampa Suncoast Parkway 

at NorthPointe Village 
2101 Northpointe Parkway 

Lutz, FL 33558

Note: The Advanced Agenda Package is a working document and thus all materials are 

considered DRAFTS prior to presentation and Board acceptance, approval or adoption.



 

  

The Preserve at South Branch Community Development District 
 

c/o Vesta District Services 

250 International Parkway, Suite 208 

Lake Mary, FL  32746 

321-263-0132 x536 
 
 
 

Board of Supervisors  
The Preserve at South Branch Community Development District  
 
 
 
Dear Board Members:  
 
A Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of The Preserve at South Branch Community 
Development District is scheduled for Thursday, February 5, 2026 at 4:00 p.m. at Residence Inn 
Tampa Suncoast Parkway at NorthPointe Village, 2101 Northpointe Parkway, Lutz, FL 33558.  
 
The advanced copy of the agenda for the meeting is attached along with associated 
documentation. Any additional support material will be distributed at the meeting.  
 
The balance of the agenda is routine in nature and staff will present their reports at the 
meeting. If you have any questions, please contact me (hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com).  
 
 
Sincerely,  
 

Heath Beckett 
 

Heath Beckett 
District Manager  
 
 
CC: Attorney  

Engineer  
District File 

mailto:hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com


Page 1 of 3 

Draft Revised 2/4/2026 Denotes Link to Agenda Page: 

The PRESERVE 
at SOUTH 
BRANCH 

Community 
Development 

District: 

Regular Meeting

AGENDA 

Meeting Date: Thursday, February 5, 2026 Click Here to Join the Meeting Online 
Time: 4:00 p.m. Call-in Number: 1-904-348-0776 

Location: Residence Inn Tampa Suncoast Parkway Meeting ID: 684 257 747# 
at NorthPointe Village  Mute/Unmute: *6 
2101 Northpointe Parkway Raise/Lower Hand: *5 
Lutz, FL 33558 

Full agenda package is available on the District’s website:  www.thepreserveatsouthbranchcdd.org 

Or contact sconley@vestapropertyservices.com 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS: ROLL CALL 

Supervisors Present Teams Absent 

Anthony Snyder (C) 

Thomas Handrick, Jr 

David Silverstein 

Rob Howard (VC) 

Jules Abercrombie 

Staff/Vendors 
Heath Beckett, District Manager, Vesta District Services 
Mike Bush, Field Manager, Vesta District Services 
Lindsay Moczynski, District Counsel, Kilinski Van Wyk 
Jerry Whited, District Engineer, BDi 
Chuck Burnite, Account Manager, GHS Environmental 
Ted Katina, Account Manager, Cepra 
Chris Thompson, President, Blue Water Aquatics 
Randy Mitchell, Fountain Tech, Blue Water Aquatics 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS: AUDIENCE COMMENTS 
(Limited to 3 Minutes per Individual on CDD-Related Business) 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS: OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 

A. District Engineer – Jerry Whited, Brletic Dvorak Inc. EXHIBIT 1 

1. Notification of Rate Increase for Fiscal Year 2026 EXHIBIT 2 

2. Discussion on Drainage Complaint at 15870 Mauvewood EXHIBIT 3 

3. Update on South Branch Blvd. Conveyance to Pasco County

B. Review of Field Services Requests/Responses (11/28 – 1/23) EXHIBIT 4 

C. Aquatic – Chuck Burnite, GHS Environmental EXHIBIT 5 

1. Consideration of GHS Proposal #26-205 for One-Time Brazilian Pepper
Treatment Behind Beluga Bay Dr. Townhomes - $1,950.00

EXHIBIT 6 

2. Consideration of Midge Fly/Mosquito Treatment Plan WALK-ON EXHIBIT A 

l

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NDg4OGNmZDgtZmY1YS00NWExLTg4YzAtMWFmODU2Y2YwMmVl%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%228af87444-20b6-4d0d-8eb0-34a4747a03fd%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b972186f-9719-4b44-bdb6-31b88894beeb%22%7d
http://www.thepreserveatsouthbranchcdd.org/
mailto:sconley@vestapropertyservices.com


THE PRESERVE AT SOUTH BRANCH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT February 5, 2026 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Page 2 of 3 

Draft Revised 2/4/2026 Denotes Link to Agenda Page: 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS: OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE (Continued) 

l

EXHIBIT 7 

EXHIBIT 8 

D. Landscape – Ted Katina, Cepra

1. Consideration of Cepra Proposal #52952 for Bi-annual Cleanup Behind Wall
on East Side of Property - $5,000.00

2. Consideration of Cepra Proposal #51796 for Phase 1 Enhancements at SR54
Entry - $9,975.00

EXHIBIT 9 

3. Consideration of Cepra Proposal #54327 for Spring Annuals 
Rotation at Front Entrance and Center Island - $2,362.50 

WALK-ON EXHIBIT B 

EXHIBIT 10 

EXHIBIT 11 

EXHIBIT 12 

WALK-ON EXHIBIT C 

EXHIBIT 13 

E. Fountains – Chris Thompson/Randy Mitchell, Blue Water Aquatics

1. Blue Water Aquatics Proposal #FA-2025-1159 to Replace Fountain 4 
Capacitor Box - $632.24

F. Field Services – Michael Bush, Vesta District Services

1. Consideration of Field Operation Proposals

G. District Counsel – Lindsay Moczynski, Kilinski Van Wyk PLLC

H. District Manager – Heath Beckett, Vesta District Services

1. Discussion on Scheduling of Budget Workshop (April)

2. Discussion on HOA Water Meters – Updated

3. Discussion on Sidewalk Repairs

a. 2940 Suncoast Blend Drive (Frontier)

b. Suncoast Plains (Blue Water Aquatics)

4. Discussion on Fountain Maintenance Service EXHIBIT 14 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: CONSENT AGENDA 

EXHIBIT 15 

EXHIBIT 16 

EXHIBIT 17 

A. Consideration and Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting Held
December 4, 2025

B. Consideration and Acceptance of the December 2025 Unaudited Financial
Report

C. Ratification of Approval of Cepra Proposals:

1. #52965 for South Branch Blvd. Irrigation Repair - $635.00

2. #53124 for Mainline Repair at End of South Branch Blvd. - $700.00

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: 

SUPERVISOR REQUESTS & COMMENTS  
(Includes Updates, General Comments, and Next Meeting Agenda Requests) 

AUDIENCE COMMENTS  
(Limited to 3 Minutes Per Individual on CDD-Related Business) 



THE PRESERVE AT SOUTH BRANCH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT February 5, 2026 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Page 3 of 3 

Draft Revised 2/4/2026 Denotes Link to Agenda Page: 

Supervisor Attending 
In 

Person 
Virtually Not 

Anthony Snyder (C) 

Thomas Handrick, Jr 

David Silverstein 

Rob Howard (VC) 

Jules Abercrombie 

4 p.m. on March 5, 2026 
Springhill Suites Tampa Suncoast Parkway 
16615 Crosspointe Run 
Land O’Lakes, FL  34638 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: ACTION ITEM SUMMARY (To be Listed in Meeting Minutes) 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: ADJOURNMENT 

l



l



 

EXHIBIT 1  

l



BDi  
 

 
   536 4th Ave. S, Unit 4 St. Petersburg, Fl 33701             D. (813) 361-1466 www.bdiengineers.com 
 

DISTRICT ENGINEER 

PRESERVE AT SOUTH BRANCH CDD 
ENGINEERS REPORT FOR FEBRUARY 5th, 2026 BOARD MEETING 

 
Ongoing Projects Report and Updates: 

 
 
 
Environmental Resource Permits – There are two Environmental Resource Permits that will be due for recertification 
this year, please see tracker below. The ER Permits are overseen and regulated by The Southwest Florida Water 
Management District (SWFWMD). The ponds and stormwater infrastructure associated with these permits need to be 
inspected and reported as part of the recertification. As part of the process, we will provide the District with a required 
and/or recommended maintenance report for the system that can be explained and discussed by the Board at the 
meeting following the inspection to build a stormwater system maintenance plan.  
 

 

 
FPC E – Modification: The survey results were received back from MRIC and reviewed. BDi is working to provide the site 
plan for the restoration and stabilization.   
 
Wetland 11 Grading Evaluation: A request for a pre-application meeting has been sent to SWFWMD for the grading and 
vegetation removal at wetland 11 with supporting documentation provided. We should have a date for the meeting  
 
Living Coral Valley Gutter Repair: SiteMasters removed and repoured the concrete valley gutter on Living Coral. The 
project was inspected, and pooling water in front of the driveway remained an issue. It was determined that the work 
would need to be redone under a project warranty to provide better flow of the water to the inlet and that was 
communicated to the vendor. The warranty work was recently completed by SiteMasters.   

Permit# District Inspections Project Name Last 
O&M

Next 
O&M

26611.003 Preserve at South Branch CDD Yes South Branch Ranch NA 6/16/2026
26611.008 Preserve at South Branch CDD Yes South Branch Ranch Phase 2/3 NA 8/31/2026

l



47.8'

47.1'

46.6'

46.0'

47.0'

47.9'

48.0'

46.5'

45.8'

46.0'

47.8'

46.4'

47.9'

TO
B

TO
B

TO
B

TOB

TOB

TOB

TO
B

TOB

TOB

TO
B

TO
B

TOB
TOB

TO
B

TOB

TO
B

TO
B

EDGE OF WATER
12-10-2025TRACT B-13

701 S. Howard Avenue, Suite 106-320
Tampa, FL 33606

813-515-0821
MRICSpatial.com

Licensed Business #8325

Survey History
Date Description  By

12/10/25 Last field data acquisition JF

Horizontal Datum NAD83
Vertical Datum NAVD88

Survey Datum

South Branch CDD
Topographic

Prepared for:
Vesta Property Services

Section 30, Township 26 South, Range 18 East,

Project Number: 250145

Pasco County, FL

Sheet 1 of  1Pierson A. Monetti, LS 7227

A.

l
ADIROLF

and

Li

censeNumber

0

Scale: 1" = 10'

10' 20'

VICINITY MAP - NOT TO SCALE

SITE

LIMITED TOPOGRAPHIC AND SURVEY

52
.3' Elevation Shot Location

Elevation In Feet
LB Licensed Business

Record Measurement(R)

Polyvinyl ChloridePVC

High-Density PolyetheleneHDPE

Typical(TYP)

InvertINV

Corrugated Metal PipeCMP

Overhead Utility LinesOU

Sanitary Sewer LineS

Solid Yellow LineSYL

Solid White LineSWL
Reinforced Concrete PipeRCP

Grate Top InletGTI

Gas LineG

ElevationEL

CONC. Concrete

O.R. Official Records Book

BFP Back Flow Preventor

OCS Outlet Control Structure

Finished Floor ElevationFFE

Mitered End SectionMES

Storm Drain LineSD

Water LineW

Communications LineC

PagePg. Comm Box
Electric Box

Irrigation Box
Reclaimed Water Box

Electric Handhole
Cable Handhole

Gas Handhole
Irrigation Handhole
Sanitary Handhole
Utility Handhole
Water Handhole

Drainage Manhole
Electric Manhole

Manhole
Sanitary Manhole

Traffic Control Box

C
E

I
R
T

E
C

G
I
S
U
W

D
E

M
S

Grease Manhole

Comm Marker
Electric Marker
Gas Marker
Irrigation Marker

Sanitary Marker
Utility Marker
Water Marker

Electric Meter
Gas Meter
Irrigation Meter
Reclaimed Water Meter
Sanitary Meter

Water Meter

Comm Pedestal
Electric  Pedestal
Utility Pedestal

Air Release Valve
Force Main Valve
Gas Valve
Irrigation Valve
Reclaimed Water Valve
Sanitary Valve
Utility Valve
Water Valve

Comm Vault
Electric Vault
Utility Vault

Backflow Preventer

Cleanout

Fire Dept. Connection
Fire Hydrant

Found Aluminum Disk
Found Axle
Found Brass Disk

Found Conc. Monument
Found Drill Hole
Found Iron Pipe
Found Iron Pipe and Cap
Found  Iron Rod
Found  Iron Rod and Cap
Found Mag Nail
Found Mag Nail and Disk

Found Nail & Disk
Found Nail
Found  Pinched Iron Pipe
Found  PK Nail
Found  PK Nail and Disk
Found  X Cut

Set Iron Rod and Cap
Set Mag Nail G

C
E
G
I

S
U

W

E

G
I
R
S

W

C
E
U

ARV
FM
G
I
R
S
U
W

C
E
U

CO

Set Mag Nail and Disk
Set Nail

Ground Control Point

Traverse Point
Work Point

FAD
FAXL
FBD

FCM
FDH
FIP

FIPC
FIR

FIRC
FMG

FMGD

FND
FNL

FPIP
FPK

FPKD
FX

SIRC
SMG

SMGD
SNL

GCP

TRP
WP

Grate Top Inlet

LEGEND

Train Tracks
Fence

Benchmark

Instrument NumberINS#

Delineator Post
Guard Rail

Top of BankTOB

Plat Measurement(P)

Broken White LineBWL
Broken Yellow LineBYL

Double White LineDWL
Double Yellow LineDYL

Utility ManholeU

THT Control Structure Throat

Flood LightFL

Yard DrainYD

Flag Pole

Gate

Hand Rail
FP

Vitrified Clay PipeVCP

Bottom of BoxBOB
SHW Seasonal High Water

MHW Mean High Water

WF Wetland Flag

Found Bench MarkFBM

Metal Detector RingRING

Permanent Control PointPCP

Set X CutSX

Permanent Reference MonumentPRM
Temporary Bench MarkTBM

Utility BoxU
Water BoxW

Reclaim MarkerR

Utility MeterU

Electric LineE

Irrigation LineI

Reclaim LineR

Utility LineU

Air Conditioner UnitA/C

Bollard

Crosswalk Signal Pole

OSW Other Surface Waters

Guy Anchor

Light Pole

Monitoring Well

Utility Pole

Sanitary Cleanout

Sign

Mail Box

S

MB
TransformerTFR

Service CabinetSRVC

Traffic Signal PoleTSP

Surveyor's Certificate
This survey not valid without the original signature and
seal of a Florida Professional Surveyor and Mapper, or
a digital signature complying with 5J-17 Florida Statutes

SURVEYOR'S NOTES:

1) This survey was prepared without the benefit of current title, ownership and encumbrances and is subject to
title review and/or abstract. MRIC Spatial, LLC. makes no representations or guarantees pertaining to
easements, encumbrances, rights-of-ways, reservations, agreements and other similar matters

2) This survey is limited to above ground visible improvements along and near the boundary lines, except as
shown hereon, and that nothing below the ground was located including, but not limited to foundations (footings),
utilities, etc.

3) Additions or Deletions to survey maps or reports by other than the signing party or parties is prohibited without
the written consent of the signing party or parties.

4) Use of this survey for purposes other than intended, without written verification, will be at the user's sole risk
and without liability to the surveyor.  Nothing hereon shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to anyone
other than those certified to.

5) On this drawing, certify means to state or declare a professional opinion of conditions regarding those findings
or facts which are the subject of the certification and does not constitute a warranty or guarantee, either implied
or expressed.  This certification is only for the lands as described. This certification is not a certificate of title,
easements, zoning or freedom of encumbrances.

6) The lands described hereon may contain lands that are considered environmentally sensitive wetlands that are
subject to claim or restriction by one or more of the following agencies:  Army Corp. of Engineers, Southwest
Florida Water Management District (S.W.F.W.M.D.), or Department of Environmental Protection (D.E.P.).
Wetland lines and areas, if any, are not shown hereon.

7) Underground utilities shown hereon may be based solely or in part on the following: Markings provided by
utility companies, plans requested from utility providers, observed above ground evidence and remote sensing
measurements taken by the surveyor. All evidence of underground utilities made available to the surveyor are
shown hereon. However, lacking excavation, the exact location of underground features cannot be accurately,
completely, and reliably depicted. Where additional or more detailed information is required, the user of this
survey is advised that excavation and/or a private utility locate request may be necessary. Due to limitations
outside the surveyor's control, underground infrastructure or utilities may exist within or near the subject property
that are not depicted hereon.

8) It is hereby certified that a survey of the hereon described property was made under my supervision and meets
the standards of practice set forth by the Florida Board of Professional Surveyors and Mappers in Chapter
5J-17.060 FAC, pursuant to Section 472.027, FS.

9) Elevations shown hereon are based on the North American Vertical Datum of 1988 (NAVD 88), based on
National Geodetic Survey Benchmark "LB 7778", having a published elevation of 50.88 feet (NAVD 88).

1/13/26 Revised Surface PM

l



BDi

536 4th Ave. S, Unit 4 St. Petersburg, Fl 33701             D. (813) 361-1466 www.bdiengineers.com

DISTRICT ENGINEER

l



 

EXHIBIT 2 

  

l



  
 

 
   536 4th Ave. S, Unit 4 St. Petersburg, Fl 33701             D. (813) 361-1466 www.bdiengineers.com 
 

 

 

CDD Labor Rates 

(January 1, 2026 – September 30, 2026) 

 

Classification Rates 
Principal $240 

Project Manager I $210 

Project Manager II $180 

Senior Engineer $190 

Project Engineer $150 

Engineer $120 

Senior Environmental Scientist $150 

Environmental Scientist $110 

Senior Designer $120 

Designer $100 

Senior Engineering Technician $90 

Engineering Technician $70 

Field Manager $135 

Senior Inspector $120 

Inspector $80 

Clerical $50 
 

 

 

 

l

http://www.bdiengineers.com/


 

EXHIBIT 3 

  

l



From: Thalia Bozikis  

Sent: Thursday, January 22, 2026 2:25 PM 

To: The preserve <thepreserve@vestapropertyservices.com> 

Subject: Water pooling 

  

 

This started once the 2 hurricanes hit back to back before I bought this house 

  

 

  

 

l

mailto:thepreserve@vestapropertyservices.com


 

 

Thalia Bozikis 

Sent from my iPhone 

 

l



 

EXHIBIT 4 

  

l



The Preserve at South Branch CDD
Field Requests

Entry 
#

Date 
Created

Subject Your Name - 
Last

Address - Street 
Address

Your Message

303 2026-01-20 13:58:20Street Signs Worthington 15449 Black Pepper 
Lane

The street sign at my corner (Black Pepper Lane 
and Sweet Springs Bend) on top of the stop 
sign keeps leaning and seems close to falling 
off. I would appreciate someone checking this 
and repairing it.

302 2026-01-20 13:56:26Other Worthington 15449 Black Pepper 
Lane

The fence behind my property (not my fence, 
the association property fence) has several 
panels that have been missing for several 
weeks. I would like the CDD to repair those.

301 2026-01-19 19:59:45Streetlights Martinez 15354 Sweet 
Springs Bend

Streetlight in front of the house is out. I have 
emailed HOA and placed a request through 
CDD but have not received any confirmation.

300 2026-01-15 08:34:06Streetlights Martinez 15354 Sweet 
Springs Bend

Streetlight in front of house is out. Noticed it 
about 2-3 days ago. Thanks!

299 2026-01-06 11:56:19Other Grice 15793 Midnight 
Dove Ct

I am submitting this maintenance 
request/complaint to report ongoing wild hog 
activity that is causing repeated damage to my 
property.
The wild hogs are entering my yard from the 
CDD-managed property directly behind my 
home. This activity has resulted in significant 
lawn and soil damage, including deep rooting 
and destruction of lawn. The damage has 
occurred multiple times and is continuing to 
worsen.
My HOA has reviewed the situation and 
confirmed that, since the hogs are originating 
from the CDD property, this matter needs to be 
addressed by the CDD. I am requesting that the 
CDD investigate the issue and take appropriate 
mitigation measures, such as professional 
wildlife management (trapping) or other 
deterrent solutions, to prevent further damage 
to adjacent homeowners’ properties. Since 
they are an invasive species please let me 
know what options I have.
Please let me know if additional information, 
photos, or documentation is needed. I 
appreciate your attention to this matter and 
look forward to your response.

298 2025-12-11 16:45:58Landscaping (of the common areas; includes irrigation issues)Handrick 3157 Living Coral Dr The reclaim water line at the dead end of 
Southbranch is still broken. Please keep me in 
the loop as to when and what repairs occur. 

l



The Preserve at South Branch CDD
Field Requests

Entry 
#

Date 
Created

Subject Your Name - 
Last

Address - Street 
Address

Your Message

297 2025-12-05 12:21:44Other Bryant 2922 Suncoast 
Plains Dr

My lanai has been infested with rats despite 
being screened in. The rats have chewed 
through the screen door. I have giant wholes in 
my screen that I had to put tape over.

l



1

Shirley M. Conley

From: Heath Beckett
Sent: Tuesday, January 20, 2026 3:02 PM
To: keith1302@mac.com; Michael P. Bush; Shirley M. Conley; anthonyjsnyderii@yahoo.com
Subject: RE: CDD - The Preserve at South Branch Contact [#303]

Good afternoon, 
 
Thank you for bringing this to our attention.  We will work on getting these items taken care of. 
 

 
Your Community. 
Our Commitment. 

Heath Beckett 
District Manager 
P. 321.263.0132 x536 
 
Vesta District Services 
250 International Pkwy Suite 208, 
Lake Mary, FL 32746 
www.VestaPropertyServices.com 

  
Careers | Request Proposal 
 

 

 
 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE:  This e-mail, and any attachment to it, contains privileged and confidential information intended 
only for the use of the individual(s) or entity named on the e-mail. If the reader of this e-mail is not the intended recipient, or 
the employee or agent responsible for delivering it to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that reading it is strictly 
prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please immediately return it to the sender and delete it from your system. 

 
 
From: MachForm <mailer@forms-db.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, January 20, 2026 1:58 PM 
To: Michael P. Bush <mbush@vestapropertyservices.com>; Heath Beckett <hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com>; 
Shirley M. Conley <sconley@vestapropertyservices.com>; anthonyjsnyderii@yahoo.com 
Subject: CDD - The Preserve at South Branch Contact [#303] 
 

Contacting Field Services 

Subject Street Signs 

Your Name Michael Worthington 

Your Email keith1302@mac.com  

Phone (630) 715-7198 

Address 
15449 Black Pepper Lane  
Odessa, FL 33556 
United States 

Your Message 
The street sign at my corner (Black Pepper Lane and Sweet Springs Bend) on top of the stop sign keeps leaning and seems close to 
falling off. I would appreciate someone checking this and repairing it. 

l



2

 
Thank you, 
Michael Worthington 

Privacy Policy - I have read and agree with the Privacy Policy. 

 

l



1

Shirley M. Conley

From: Shirley M. Conley
Sent: Thursday, January 22, 2026 11:29 AM
To: jam1783@gmail.com
Cc: Michael P. Bush; Anthony Snyder; Heath Beckett
Subject: RE: CDD - The Preserve at South Branch Contact [#301]

Joseph, 
Below is an update from Duke regarding your streetlight repair request. 
Thank you, 
 

 
Your Community. 
Our Commitment. 

Shirley Conley 
Administrator 
P. 321.263.0132 ext. 749 
Vesta District Services 
250 International Parkway, Suite 208, 
Lake Mary, FL 32746 
www.VestaDistrictServices.com 
Vesta District Services is a wholly owned subsidiary of 
Vesta Property Services. 
www.VestaPropertyServices.com 

  
Careers | Request Proposal 
  

 

  
 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE:  This e-mail, and any attachment to it, contains privileged and confidential information 
intended only for the use of the individual(s) or entity named on the e-mail. If the reader of this e-mail is not the 
intended recipient, or the employee or agent responsible for delivering it to the intended recipient, you are hereby 
notified that reading it is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please immediately return it to 
the sender and delete it from your system. 

 
 
From: EAMBusinessSupport@duke-energy.com <EAMBusinessSupport@duke-energy.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, January 21, 2026 3:22 PM 
To: Shirley M. Conley <sconley@vestapropertyservices.com> 
Subject: Return Trip Underground Repair 
 

  
Thank you for reporting the outdoor light outage located at 15362 SWEET SWINGS BEND ODESSA, FL 33556.  Our 
technician was unable to complete the repair.  We have scheduled additional work to repair the underground 
cable.  You should expect the repair to be completed in the next 10 business days with an estimated completion date 
of 02/04/2026.   Our business days are considered Monday through Friday excluding government holidays.  We 
apologize for any inconvenience this may cause. For any further inquiries, please contact us at 800.700.8744 or on our 
website at duke-energy.com/outages.  
  
WO#: 60723526 
Pole #: 8698425 

 You don't often get email from eambusinesssupport@duke-energy.com. Learn why this is important   

l



1

Shirley M. Conley

From: Duke Energy <alerts@duke-energyalert.com>
Sent: Tuesday, January 27, 2026 4:38 PM
To: Shirley M. Conley
Subject: Completion: Light repair request complete

 

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.
Duke Energy

 

Outdoor Light Repair Complete 
  

The outdoor light repair you recently reported on 01/20 has been 

completed. Thank you for reporting this outage in your community. 

Address on Light Reported: 15449 Black Pepper Ln, Odessa, FL 

Problem Type: Complete 

Pole Number: 8698425 

Work Order: 60723526 

To report another outdoor light outage, visit our outdoor lighting repair 

map. For questions, please call us at 800.769.3766. 

Please do not reply to this message. Replies to this message are routed to an unmonitored 

mailbox. 
  

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.
Building a Smarter Energy Future

 

To 
he
lp 
pr
ot
ec
t 
yo
ur  

To 
he
lp 
pr
ot
ec
t 
yo
ur  

To 
he
lp 
pr
ot
ec
t 
yo
ur  

To 
he
lp 
pr
ot
ec
t 
yo
ur  

To 
he
lp 
pr
ot
ec
t 
yo
ur  

To 
he
lp 
pr
ot
ec
t 
yo
ur   

Privacy Policy duke-energy.com
 

Duke Energy 526 South Church Street Charlotte, NC 28202
 

l



1

Shirley M. Conley

From: Ted Katina <TKatina@cepralandscape.com>
Sent: Friday, December 12, 2025 2:15 PM
To: Heath Beckett
Cc: Shirley M. Conley; Michael P. Bush
Subject: Re: Palm Tree Removal at Preserve at South Branch

Apologies Heath I thought I told you it was done earlier this week. Also the stumps and the irrigation is 
being repaired today as well. 
 
Thanks, 
Ted Katina 
tkatina@cepralandscape.com 

We’re not the biggest landscape company; we’re the most dedicated. 

From: Heath Beckett <hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com> 
Sent: Friday, December 12, 2025 2:12:18 PM 
To: Ted Katina <tkatina@cepralandscape.com> 
Cc: Shirley M. Conley <sconley@vestapropertyservices.com>; Michael P. Bush <mbush@vestapropertyservices.com> 
Subject: Palm Tree Removal at Preserve at South Branch  
  
Hey Ted, 
  
Hope all is going well.  One of the supervisors reached out wondering when the palm tree would be 
removed.  He is worried that it will fall and cause damage.  Would you have a time frame on that? 
  
Thanks, 
  

Heath Beckett 
District Manager 
P. 321.263.0132 x536 
 
Vesta District Services 
250 International Pkwy Suite 208, 
Lake Mary, FL 32746 
www.VestaPropertyServices.com 

l



 

EXHIBIT 5  

l



Pond 2 
(±

2.0
 A

c.
)

Pond 4 
(±

4.
7 

Ac.)

Pond 5 
(±

6.2
 A

c.
)

Pond 6 
(±

3.
9 

Ac.)

Pond 7 
(±

6.
4 

Ac.)

Pond 8 
(±

1.
0 

Ac.)

Pond 9 
(±

3.
8 

Ac.)

Pond 10
 (±

2.
0 A

c.)

FPC A
 (±

12
.0 

Ac.)

FPC B
1 (

±0
.4 

Ac.)

FPC B
2 

(±
13

.6 
Ac.)

FPC C
 (±

0.9
 A

c.)

FPC D
 (±

0.5
 A

c.)

FPC E
 (±

0.7
 A

c.)

FPC F
 (±

0.6
 A

c.)

FPC G
 (±

0.6
 A

c.)

FPC H
 (±

1.0
 A

c.)

Mit 
1 (

±4
.8 

Ac.)

Mit 
3 (

±2
.7 

Ac.)

Main
te

nan
ce

 A
re

a 1
 

(±
20

.58
 A

c.)

Main
te

nan
ce

 A
re

a 2
 

(±
9.7

7 A
c.)

Main
te

nan
ce

 A
re

a 3
 

(±
2.8

5 A
c.)

Main
te

nan
ce

 A
re

a 4
 

(±
14

.32
 A

c.)

Main
te

nan
ce

 A
re

a 5
 

(±
9.5

4 A
c.)

l



EXHIBIT 6 

l



GHS Environmental 
   PO Box 55802 

   St. Petersburg, FL 33732-5802 

   727-667-6786 

 

  
 

January 29, 2026 
 

The Preserve at South Branch Community Development District  

c/o Mr. Heath Beckett 

Vesta District Services 
250 International Parkway, Suite 208 
Lake Mary, Florida 32746 
 
Re.: The Preserve at South Branch Community Development District  

Townhomes Brazilian Pepper Treatment 

GHS Proposal #26-205 
 
Dear Mr. Beckett,  
 
GHS Environmental (GHS) is pleased to provide this proposal for the treatment of 
Brazilian pepper trees located behind the five townhome buildings located on Beluga Bay 
Drive at The Preserve at South Branch Community Development District (CDD).  
 
This proposal was prepared based on the information provided by the Client. The tasks, 
services and associated costs as described below are subject to change with direct 
requests by Client. This proposal is to be considered as a draft for review by Client. If the 
tasks are acceptable, this proposal may be considered final and signed to initiate 
services. 
 

Proposed Scope of Services 
 
Task 1: Townhomes Brazilian Pepper Treatment 
GHS will apply an herbicide treatment on the Brazilian pepper trees located between the 
concrete wall behind the five townhome buildings and the property line. All trees will be 
left in place to decompose naturally. GHS is not responsible for any removal of vegetation. 
Attachment A depicts the project location.   
 
Please note, this price includes creating access trails (primarily behind the northern 
townhome) to apply herbicide application to the trunks.   

 

Proposed Budget 
 
Table 1 summarizes the proposed budget for the tasks outlined above. Our proposed 
budget for the work described above is $1,950 for Task 1. The budget provided above is 
our best estimate of the final cost; our invoices, however, will be on a time and materials 
basis, and will reflect the actual costs required to complete the assigned tasks. The 
proposed budget is to be considered a “not-to-exceed” figure; unexpected costs over and 
above this estimate will not be incurred prior to obtaining your authorization. 
 
Additional services not covered by this scope can be handled under a separate proposal.  

l



The Preserve at South Branch Community Development District 
GHS Proposal #: 26-205 
January 29, 2026 

2 

Table 1 – Proposed Budget 
 

Task Description Subtotal 

TASK 1 Townhomes Brazilian Pepper Treatment $1,950 

GRAND TOTAL $1,950 

 
Closing Comments 

We greatly appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal for your consideration. 
Please do not hesitate to call us at (727) 432-2820 with any questions you might have 
concerning this proposal. If you wish to modify this proposal, GHS will readily tailor it to 
address your unique needs. If this proposal meets with your approval, GHS would 
appreciate your acceptance by returning a signed copy via email to 
Chuck@GHSenvironmental.com. We look forward to working with you on this project. 

 
Sincerely yours, 
 
GHS Environmental 

       
Dana J. Gaydos       Chuck Burnite 
Principal                 Sr. Environmental Scientist 
 
 
Accepted by: 
 
 
________________________     ________________________ 
Signature/Title       Date 

l



Attachment A 
Townhome Brazilian Pepper Treatment 

Legend    

Project Location

500 ft

N

➤➤

N
Image © 2025 Airbus

Image © 2025 Airbus

Image © 2025 Airbus

l



 

 

 

 

WALK-ON 

EXHIBIT A  

l



l



 

EXHIBIT 7 

  

l



From: Ted Katina <TKatina@cepralandscape.com>  

Sent: Monday, January 26, 2026 2:31 PM 

Subject: The Preserve CDD 

GA we are spot mowing this week and spraying turf weeds and fungus 

 

Sent: Tuesday, January 20, 2026 1:59 PM 

Subject: The Preserve CDD  

Good afternoon Heath we're not mowing this week because the grass is not growing with the 

cooler weather. We have started pruning crape  myrtles and working on detail this week. Let me 

know if you need anything. 

 

Sent: Thursday, January 15, 2026 10:46 AM 

Subject: Re: Irrigation 

Please, I meant to tell you there’s a chance the flowers at the front entrance and the fountain 

could get some frost damage. I don’t think it’s worth it to cover them though because we’re 

getting ready to change them out probably the end of next month. 

 

Sent: Thursday, January 15, 2026 6:54 AM 

Subject: Re: Irrigation  

GM we will be shutting off water for the weekend with freezing temperatures expected and will 

monitor next week. 

 

Sent: Monday, January 5, 2026 9:24 AM 

Subject: Happy New Year 

GM back on regular schedule mowing this week. Let us know if you need anything. 

 

Sent: Friday, December 5, 2025 6:12 PM 

Subject: Update  

Good evening the palm has been removed from the roundabout and we  will be grinding stumps 

next week. Irrigation has been repaired at the end of South Branch. Have a good weekend 

 

Sent: Monday, December 1, 2025 6:30 AM 

Subject: Update 

GM I hope everyone had a nice holiday. Got a call on Thanksgiving from Rob about the back 

valve we repaired leaking again. Must have kids back there again. We will schedule to look at it. 

We will be mowing the CDD this week. 

l



 

EXHIBIT 8 

  

l



l



l



 

EXHIBIT 9 

  

l



l



l



WALK-ON 
EXHIBIT B 

l



l



l



 

EXHIBIT 10 

  

l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



 

EXHIBIT 11 

  

l



THANK YOU for choosing Blue Water Aquatics, Inc.!
Page 1 of 1

Blue Water Aquatics, Inc.Blue Water Aquatics, Inc.
5119 State Road 54
New Port Richey, FL  34652

(727) 842-2100
office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com

www.bluewateraquaticsinc.com

Estimate
ADDRESS
Preserve at South Branch CDD
c/o Vesta Property Services, Inc.
250 International Parkway, Suite 208
Lake Mary, FL  32746

ESTIMATE FA-2025-1159
DATE 12/11/2025
EXPIRATION DATE 02/11/2026

DATE DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

Fountain Repair Fountain Repair Services
FOUNTAIN #4 CAPACITOR BOX 
REPLACEMENT
(Estimate Includes All Materials, 
Shipping, Taxes and Labor)

1 632.24 632.24

Please note: this is a preliminary ESTIMATE not a final invoice.
Parts and materials required for the job will be ordered only after the 
estimate has been approved and any necessary deposits have been 
received.
Work order will be dispatched once all required items are in hand.

SUBTOTAL 632.24

TAX 0.00

TOTAL $632.24$632.24

Accepted By

Accepted Date

l



EXHIBIT 12

l



Field Operations Report
for

The Preserve At South Branch
Community Development District

February 2026

l



The Preserve at South Branch

l



The Preserve at South Branch

• Street Signs.
• Romaner has been on-site to repair the fallen 2 signs on the South Branch.

• The speed limit sign on Mauvewood Ave was repaired the week of 1/26.
• This sign looks to have been hit by a motorbike and was found lying on the ground.

• Emergency Access Fence.
• I have gotten a reasonable quote to fix this fence. I will be proceeding with this.

• Mailbox Gutters.
• Working with a new contact to come out and patch all the holes in the roof to prevent water from not 

correctly running to the gutter if installed.
• Rock Install South Branch.

• 4 boulders have been placed in this location.
• Outlet Install at Roundabout.

• The outlet has been installed.
• Triangle Pools will be making a trip out to calibrate and set parameters for the units to start dosing the 

roundabout.
• All information and contacts have been sent over from Blue Water.

• Windy meter has stopped working new unit was sent, but it was the wrong model. I am currently 
waiting for the correct model to arrive.

• Pond 7 fountain should be running by Friday.
• Basketball Cushion.

• Reorded.
• Playground/Parks.

• All equipment is in good condition.
• I am keeping an eye on the fire extinguisher/housing for vandalism.

l



Mailbox Cover 
Awning

Working with a 
new vendor to 
patch holes in the 
roof and install 
solar lights. 

l



Boulders on South Branch 9 Dots, PVC sleeves will be added. 

l



Pond 9

l



The Preserve at South Branch

Pond FPC B2

l



Pond FPC A 

l



South Branch Blvd
(North End)

l



Pond FPC – A
South End

l



Sweet Springs Park

Vinyl Fence at Black Pepper and 
Sweet Spring Bend.

Sweet Springs Park

l



THANK YOU
Michael Bush

727-403-8981

Mbush@VESTAPROPERTSERVICES.COM

l



WALK-ON 
EXHIBIT C

l



Due from Other 206.17$   as shown on the balance sheet

October, 2023 67.01$   
November, 2023 88.62$   
December, 2023 72.24$   
January, 2024 57.42$   
February, 2024 62.10$   
March, 2024 35.58$   
April, 2024 31.68$   
May, 2024 40.26$   
June, 2024 63.66$   
July, 2024 90.18$   
August, 2024 100.32$   
September, 2024 95.64$      
October, 2024 157.26$   
November, 2024 42.69$      
December, 2024 41.88$      
January, 2025 130.17$   
February, 2025 41.88$      
March, 2025 61.32$      
April, 2025 87.24$      
May, 2025 127.74$   
June, 2025 98.58$   
July, 2025 74.28$   
August, 2025 65.37$   
September, 2025 82.38$   
October, 2025 75.90$   
November, 2025 67.71$   
December, 2025 33.37$   only two bills has usage-working off credits

2,198.65$   

l



EXHIBIT 13 

l



1

Shirley M. Conley

From: Hillary Henry <hhenry001@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, December 10, 2025 1:19 PM
To: Heath Beckett
Cc: Shirley M. Conley
Subject: Re: Sidewalk

Good Afternoon, 

As instructed by the Board, I reached out to James from Frontier regarding the damage to my sidewalk. 
He indicated that Frontier may not be willing to address the issue, claiming that the Board must first 
conduct an investigation and that a contract was already signed stating there was no additional damage 
to the neighborhood and that all prior issues had been resolved. None of this information was 
communicated to the community, leaving us without the opportunity to inspect our properties before or 
after the supposed repairs. 

I would prefer not to be caught in the middle of this unnecessary back-and-forth. I am simply requesting 
that my sidewalk be repaired, particularly since I never authorized Frontier to access or drive onto my 
private property. 

Respectfully, 
Hillary Henry 

On Fri, Sep 5, 2025, 3:09 PM Heath Beckett <hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com> wrote: 

Thank you for the information.  I will bring this to the board to discuss at our next meeting.   

Please let me know if you have any other questions in the meantime. 

Your Community. 
Our Commitment.

Heath Beckett 

District Manager

P. 321.263.0132 x536

Vesta District Services

You don't often get email from hhenry001@gmail.com. Learn why this is important 

l

Shirley Conley
Highlight

Shirley Conley
Highlight



2

250 International Pkwy Suite 208,
Lake Mary, FL 32746

www.VestaPropertyServices.com

Careers | Request Proposal

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE:  This e-mail, and any attachment to it, contains privileged and confidential information intended 
only for the use of the individual(s) or entity named on the e-mail. If the reader of this e-mail is not the intended recipient, or 
the employee or agent responsible for delivering it to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that reading it is strictly 
prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please immediately return it to the sender and delete it from your system.

From: Hillary Henry <hhenry001@gmail.com>  
Sent: Friday, September 5, 2025 3:05 PM 
To: Heath Beckett <hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com> 
Cc: Shirley M. Conley <sconley@vestapropertyservices.com> 
Subject: Re: Sidewalk

I noticed it in July. They were at my house with the machinery in February and the sidewalk wasn't 
cracked then. 

On Fri, Sep 5, 2025, 2:59 PM Heath Beckett <hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com> wrote: 

Good afternoon, Hilary 

Thank you for sending over the pictures.  When did you first notice this crack in the sidewalk? 

Your Community. 
Our Commitment.

Heath Beckett

District Manager

P. 321.263.0132 x536

Vesta District Services

You don't often get email from hhenry001@gmail.com. Learn why this is important

l



3

250 International Pkwy Suite 208,
Lake Mary, FL 32746

www.VestaPropertyServices.com

Careers | Request Proposal

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE:  This e-mail, and any attachment to it, contains privileged and confidential information intended 
only for the use of the individual(s) or entity named on the e-mail. If the reader of this e-mail is not the intended recipient, or 
the employee or agent responsible for delivering it to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that reading it is strictly 
prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please immediately return it to the sender and delete it from your system.

From: Hillary Henry <hhenry001@gmail.com>  
Sent: Friday, September 5, 2025 12:40 PM 
To: Heath Beckett <hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com> 
Subject: Sidewalk

Good Morning, 

I believe Frontier cracked the sidewalk near my house when they were installing their lines. I have 
attached photos as proof. My address is 2940 Suncoast Blend Drive, Odessa, Florida 33556. 

Best Regards, 

Hillary Henry 

5613195678 

You don't often get email from hhenry001@gmail.com. Learn why this is important

l



l



l



From: J Abercrombie <jjcabby57@gmail.com>  
Sent: Friday, January 23, 2026 3:27 PM 
To: Heath Beckett <hbeckett@vestapropertyservices.com>; Jerry Whited <jwhited@bdiengineers.com>; 
preservebodpirkola <preservebodpirkola@gmail.com>; Michael P. Bush 
<mbush@vestapropertyservices.com> 
Subject: Cracked Sidewalk at SOX Project Location 

Hi Heath. 

Last week a resident let me know that the sidewalk on Suncoast Plains Dr at the entrance of the SOX 
project is severely cracked.    The resident is Ms. Kristin Pirkola, the HOA President.    I have taken 
photos of the sidewalk damage.    In addition, I found a photo I took during the SOX project construction 
(July 29, 2025 @ 13:45 hours)  and it appears heavy machinery drove over the sidewalk.  You can see the 
tire treads in the dirt when you expand the photo. 

I am hoping we can put this on the February agenda for the board to discuss. 

Thank you.  SIncerely, Jules 

l

Shirley Conley
Highlight



l



EXHIBIT 14 

l



Maintenance
Contract

Fountain Kings Inc. DATE: January 30, 2026
5668 Fishhawk Crossing Blvd #155 Sign By: 7/30/2026
Lithia, FL 33547

Community Name: The Preserve at South Branch CDD
Contact Name: Heath Beckett

Site Address:

16087 Secret Meadow Dr, Odessa, FL 33556

Lake Fountain Maintenance Frequency Amount Per Visit

(13) Floating Lake Fountains 4 Visits / Year 
Quarterly ($ 975.00)                

Quarterly Fountain Maintenance includes but is not limited to;

Floating Fountains: Test and observe all electrical connections, 
motor/light amperages and readings, observe and clean as needed 
fountain intakes/displays/lights, pressure washed at least 1x/ year. 
Notate any items that may be needing repairs or preventative care.

Full report will be sent to property managers or site contact after each 
visit.

 YEARLY TOTAL- ($ 3,900.00)             

This is not a bill, contract is good for (2) years from date of approval and auto renews if not 
cancelled. Invoices will be sent after each visit and payment will be due NET30.

If you have any questions call or email, Fountain Kings Inc. 813-833-8610 
ContactUs@FountainKings.com

Signature:                                                                                   Date:                                      
Maintenance contract is good for (2) years from date of signature, 30 days' notice of 

cancellation required to cancel from either party.

l



Maintenance
Contract

Fountain Kings Inc. DATE: January 30, 2026
5668 Fishhawk Crossing Blvd #155 Sign By: 7/30/2026
Lithia, FL 33547

Community Name: The Preserve at South Branch CDD
Contact Name: Heath Beckett

Site Address:

16087 Secret Meadow Dr, Odessa, FL 33556

Water Feature Maintenance Frequency Amount Per Month

(2) Water Features Monthly 
(as needed) ($ 525.00)                

Water Feature Maintenance includes but is not limited to;
Weekly or Bi-Weekly visits as needed.

Scope of Work: Netting/skimming debris removal, cleaning of pump 
baskets and filters as needed, adding chemicals as needed to 

maintain acceptable water quality, notate any items that may be 
needing repairs or preventative care.

Items that may be needing repairs or preventative care will be notated 
and a report will be sent to the property manager or the site contact at 

the end of each month.

 YEARLY TOTAL- ($ 6,300.00)             

This is not a bill, contract is good for (2) years from date of approval and auto renews if not 
cancelled. Invoices will be sent after each visit and payment will be due NET30.

If you have any questions call or email, Fountain Kings Inc. 813-833-8610 
ContactUs@FountainKings.com

Signature:                                                                                   Date:                                      
Maintenance contract is good for (2) years from date of signature, 30 days' notice of 

cancellation required to cancel from either party.

l



 

EXHIBIT 15 

  

l



  

MINUTES OF MEETING 1 

PRESERVE AT SOUTH BRANCH 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 

 The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of The Preserve at South Branch 4 

Community Development District was held on December 4, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. at Residence Inn 5 

Tampa Suncoast Parkway at NorthPointe Village, 2101 Northpointe Parkway, Lutz, FL 33558.  The 6 

actions taken are summarized as follows: 7 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS: ROLL CALL 8 

 Mr. Beckett called the meeting to order at 4:01 p.m. and conducted roll call. 9 

Present and constituting a quorum were: 10 

Anthony Snyder (S1) Board Supervisor, Chairman 11 

Thomas Handrick, Jr. (S2) Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 12 

David Silverstein (S3) Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary  13 

Rob Howard (S4) Board Supervisor, Vice Chairman 14 

Jules Abercrombie (S5) Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 15 

Also present were: 16 

Heath Beckett District Manager, Vesta District Services 17 

Michael Bush Field Manager, Vesta District Services 18 

Lindsay Moczynski District Counsel, Kilinski Van Wyk PLLC 19 

Jerry Whited District Engineer, BDI (Virtually) 20 

Ted Katina Landscape Account Manager, Cepra 21 

Chuck Burnite Aquatics Account Manager, GHS Environmental 22 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS: AUDIENCE COMMENTS – Agenda Items (Limited 23 

to 3 minutes per individual for agenda items) 24 

There being none, the next item followed. 25 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS: OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 26 

A. EXHIBIT 1:  District Engineer – Jerry Whited, Brletic Dvorak Inc. 27 

1. Authorization for Site Master to clear Path for Equipment Access to 28 

Grading Area at Wetland 11 - $3,000.00  29 

Mr. Whited explained the proposal scope.  He has confirmed with 30 

SWFWMD that grading can be returned to the original slope without a 31 

permit modification.  He requested approval of the proposal and a pre-32 

application meeting with SWFWMD, and the overall grading project.  33 

However, the path clearing in the buffer is subject to SWFWMD approval. 34 

Additional proposals for the path clearing were requested. 35 

The District Engineer was authorized to proceed with the pre-application 36 

meeting with SWFWMD.  37 

l



The Preserve at South Branch CDD December 4, 2025 
Regular Meeting Page 2 of 6 

Conveyance of Phases 1 and 2 of South Branch Blvd to Pasco County will not go 38 

before the Board of County Commissioners until the TouchPoint crosswalk is 39 

repaired by the developer.  There is no action required by the District. 40 

B. EXHIBIT 2:  Review of Field Services Requests/Responses (10/28 – 11/27) 41 

C. EXHIBIT 3:  Aquatic – Chuck Burnite, GHS Environmental 42 

Mr. Burnite presented the Aquatic Report.  He advised that the majority of 43 

Brazilian Peppers behind the townhomes are located outside District property.  44 

He will present a proposal to remove Brazilian Peppers, bacteria spraying, and, if 45 

he can locate an alternate fish vendor, the Gambusia stocking proposal at the 46 

next meeting. 47 

1. EXHIBIT 4:  Consideration of GHS Proposal #25-229 for Quarterly 48 

Vegetation Spraying Around Control Structures - $400.00/Yr 49 

On a MOTION by Supervisor Snyder, SECONDED by Supervisor Handrick, Jr., WITH ALL IN FAVOR, 50 

the Board approved GHS Environmental proposal #25-229 for quarterly vegetation spraying 51 

around the control structures, in the amount of $400 per year, for The Preserve at South Branch 52 

Community Development District. 53 

2. Update on SWFWMD Wetland Mitigation Project 54 

a. EXHIBIT 5:  Consideration of Willowcreek Fire Company Proposal 55 

#1-2025 for Prescribed Fire Management Plan - $15,000.00 56 

On a MOTION by Supervisor Silverstein, SECONDED by Supervisor Snyder, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, 57 

the Board approved Willowcreek Fire Company proposal #1-2025 for a prescribed fire 58 

management plan, in the amount of $15,000.00, for The Preserve at South Branch Community 59 

Development District. 60 

Mr. Burnite was asked whether a government grant might be available to off-set 61 

funding for the prescribed burns. 62 

D. EXHIBIT 6:  Landscape – Ted Katina, Cepra 63 

Mr. Katina presented the Landscape Report.  He recommended a bi-annual 64 

clean-up for the wall behind the townhomes as it is not part of the regular 65 

maintenance scope.  Irrigation at the end of South Branch Blvd. has been 66 

damaged again due to vehicle traffic.  Repairs are scheduled for Friday when 67 

water is available.  He advised that although the turf is starting to look better, it 68 

likely will not fully recover until the rainy station.   69 

1. Consideration of Cepra Proposals 70 

a. EXHIBIT 7:  #51796 to Replace Plants at SR 54 Entry - $18,955.00 – 71 

Previously Presented 72 

Supervisors requested the proposal be split into phases and 73 

include some more cost-effective ground cover options. 74 

l



The Preserve at South Branch CDD December 4, 2025 
Regular Meeting Page 3 of 6 

b. EXHIBIT 8:  #52592 to Remove Roundabout Palm - $1,775.00 75 

(Response to Field Request #296) 76 

On a MOTION by Supervisor Abercrombie, SECONDED by Supervisor Silverstein, WITH ALL IN 77 

FAVOR, the Board approved Cepra proposal #52592 to remove the roundabout Palm, in the 78 

amount of $1,775.00, for The Preserve at South Branch Community Development District. 79 

The stump grinding project is scheduled for later in the month. 80 

E. EXHIBIT 9:  Fountains – Chris Thompson/Randy Mitchell, Blue Water Aquatics 81 

Mr. Thompson presented the Fountain Report.  The roundabout fountain light 82 

timer batter was replaced. 83 

1. EXHIBIT 10:  Consideration of Blue Water Aquatics Proposal #FA-2025-84 

1151 for Fountain 7 Wire Relay Replacement - $2,245.63 85 

Mr. Thompson reviewed the steps taken in troubleshooting the fountain.  86 

The aluminum cable will be replaced with copper. 87 

On a MOTION by Supervisor Snyder, SECONDED by Supervisor Howard, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the 88 

Board approved Blue Water Aquatics proposal #FA-2025-1151 for fountain 7 wire relay 89 

replacement in the amount of $2,245.63, for The Preserve at South Branch Community 90 

Development District. 91 

2. EXHIBIT 11:  Consideration of Additional Costs Associated With 92 

Installation of Automated Chemical Controller at Roundabout – $4,154.38 93 

(Approved NTE $4,000.00 on November 6) 94 

This item was discussed out of order prior to III.E.1. Consideration of Blue 95 

Water Aquatics Proposal #FA-2025-1151 for Fountain 7 Wire Relay 96 

Replacement 97 

- Electrical Outlet Installation - NTE __ 98 

- Chemical Supplies - $7,825.56  99 

The cost for chemicals should be reduced once the automated 100 

chlorinator is installed. 101 

- Preventive Maintenance – $522.93 102 

Mr. Thompson discussed the current process and the benefits of the 103 

automated chlorinator.   104 

On a MOTION by Supervisor Handrick, Jr., SECONDED by Supervisor Howard, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, 105 

the Board approved the additional costs for the installation of the automated chemical controller 106 

at the roundabout fountain (installation: $154.38, ongoing chemical supplies: $7,825.56 per year, 107 

and preventative maintenance agreement: $522.93 per year), for The Preserve at South Branch 108 

Community Development District. 109 

l



The Preserve at South Branch CDD December 4, 2025 
Regular Meeting Page 4 of 6 

Supervisor Howard estimated an outlet installation for the chlorinator would 110 

cost approximately $500.00.  Mr. Bush was directed to reach out to Onyx to 111 

install the outlet. 112 

On a MOTION by Supervisor Handrick, Jr., SECONDED by Supervisor Snyder, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, 113 

the Board approved the installation of an electrical outlet for the roundabout chlorinator, in an 114 

amount not to exceed $500.00, for The Preserve at South Branch Community Development 115 

District. 116 

In response to a question on cattails, Mr. Burnite advised they are native, but can be 117 

knocked back in areas not identified as wetlands. 118 

F. EXHIBIT 12:  Field Services – Michael Bush, Vesta District Services 119 

Mr. Bush discussed the placement of boulders at the end of South Branch Blvd to 120 

protect the District’s irrigation system.  Ms. Moczynski advised that the County’s 121 

right-of-way and easement cannot be blocked by the boulder placement. 122 

Mr. Bush reviewed the Field Services Report.  Mr. Howard will provide Mr. Bush 123 

with vendor referrals for gutters and roof repairs at the mailboxes. 124 

1. Consideration of Field Operation Proposals 125 

There being none, the next item followed. 126 

G. District Counsel – Lindsay Moczynski, Kilinski Van Wyk PLLC 127 

Ms. Moczynski reviewed the next steps for the wetland mitigation plan 128 

discussions with SWFWMD and reminded Supervisors to complete the 4-hour 129 

ethics training requirement prior to December 31.  She will forward the links to 130 

Supervisors for the free training.  Her firm is monitoring the upcoming legislative 131 

sessions, with a few bills that could affect the District.  She noted that the 132 

proposed changes to property taxes would not impact the District’s collection of 133 

non ad-valorem assessments. 134 

H. District Manager – Heath Beckett, Vesta District Services 135 

1. EXHIBIT 13:  Consideration of LLS Tax Solutions Inc. Proposal for Bond 136 

Series 2019 Arbitrage Reporting 2026 and 2027 - $650/Yr 137 

Mr. Beckett will check on arbitrage reporting for the additional bonds 138 

held by the District. 139 

On a MOTION by Supervisor Abercrombie, SECONDED by Supervisor Handrick, Jr., WITH ALL IN 140 

FAVOR, the Board approved engaging LLS Tax Solutions Inc. to provide the Bond Series 2019 141 

arbitrage report for 2026 and 2027 at $650 per year, for The Preserve at South Branch 142 

Community Development District. 143 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: CONSENT AGENDA 144 

A. EXHIBIT 14:  Consideration and Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting 145 

Held November 6, 2025 146 

l



The Preserve at South Branch CDD December 4, 2025 
Regular Meeting Page 5 of 6 

B. EXHIBIT 15:   Consideration and Acceptance of the October 2025 Unaudited 147 

Financial Report 148 

C. EXHIBIT 16:  Acceptance of LLS Tax Solutions Inc. Arbitrage Rebate Report for 149 

Bond Series 2019 (Ph 2) Indicating No Cumulative Rebate Requirement Liability 150 

as of October 9, 2025 151 

On a MOTION by Supervisor Silverstein, SECONDED by Supervisor Abercrombie, WITH ALL IN 152 

FAVOR, the Board approved Consent Agenda – items A-C as presented, for The Preserve at South 153 

Branch Community Development District. 154 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: SUPERVISOR REQUESTS & COMMENTS  155 

(Includes Updates, General Comments, and Next 156 

Meeting Agenda Requests) 157 

A request was made for Mr. Whited to follow up with the vendor regarding returning to 158 

correct the ditch at 3184 Living Coral Drive; the wrong side of the driveway was 159 

previously addressed.  160 

Action was requested concerning a homeowner on Glowing Grove blocking the road 161 

with signs and allowing their children to play in the road.  Supervisor Snyder will forward 162 

photos to Ms. Moczynski for inclusion in a cease-and-desist letter that she will draft for 163 

the District Manager to distribute.  The HOA will also be contacted to send out a  164 

It was noted that the PDF of the Minutes has a different title than its file name. [Admin 165 

resolved for future Minutes 12/24/2025] 166 

Supervisor Howard stated that all of South Branch Blvd., is listed on the property 167 

appraiser’s website as owned by Pasco County; Ms. Moczynski advised that the District 168 

does not yet have documentation to support the conveyance.  Discussion followed on 169 

Pasco County activities relating to the construction of the intersection at the end of 170 

South Branch Blvd. 171 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: AUDIENCE COMMENTS – New Business (Limited 172 

to 3 minutes per individual for non-agenda items) 173 

There being none, the next item followed. 174 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: NEXT MEETING QUORUM CHECK 175 

The Preserve at South Branch Community Development District’s next meeting is scheduled for 176 

4:00 p.m. on February 5, 2026 at Residence Inn Tampa Suncoast Parkway at NorthPointe 177 

Village, located at 2101 Northpointe Parkway, Lutz, Florida 33558. 178 

All Supervisors affirmed their intent to attend the next meeting in person.  179 

l



The Preserve at South Branch CDD December 4, 2025 
Regular Meeting Page 6 of 6 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: ACTION ITEMS SUMMARY 180 

• Check to see if grants are available for the prescribed burn 181 

District Engineer 182 

• Follow up with vendor regarding returning to address the correct ditch at 183 

3184 Living Coral Drive 184 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: ADJOURNMENT 185 

On a MOTION by Supervisor Handrick, Jr., SECONDED by Supervisor Abercrombie, WITH ALL IN 186 

FAVOR, the Board adjourned the meeting at 5:20 p.m., for The Preserve at South Branch 187 

Community Development District. 188 

*Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter 189 

considered at the meeting is advised that person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of 190 

the proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be 191 

based. 192 

Meeting minutes were approved by vote of the Board of Supervisors at a publicly noticed 193 

meeting held on February 5, 2026. 194 

__________________________________ __________________________________ 195 

□ Heath Beckett, Secretary   □ Anthony Snyder, Chair 196 

□________________________, Assistant Secretary   □ Rob Howard, Vice Chair 197 

l



 

EXHIBIT 16 

  

l



The Preserve at South Branch 
Community Development District

Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

December 31, 2025

Page 1 l



 
General Capital Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service

Fund Reserve Fund 2018 2019 2021 TOTAL
1 ASSETS  
2 OPERATING ACCOUNT 2,393,722$        -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      2,393,722$        
3 CASH - DEBIT CARD -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
4  UNDEPOSITED FUNDS -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
5 TRUST ACCOUNTS -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
6 REVENUE FUND -                        -                        65,484               75,987               37,728               179,198             
7 RESERVE FUND -                        -                        131,656             177,872             217,050             526,578             
8 SINKING FUND -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
9 INTEREST FUND -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

10 2021 ACQ & CONS -                        -                        -                        -                        30,940               30,940               
11 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 25,911               -                        -                        -                        -                        25,911               
12 ON ROLL ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE 50,828               13,085               13,742               18,621               22,656               118,933             
13 DUE FROM OTHER SOURCES -                        293,342             250,680             339,681             413,273             1,296,976          
14 PREPAID EXPENSES 700                    -                        -                        -                        -                        700                    
15 DEPOSITS 4,995                 -                        -                        -                        -                        4,995                 
16 TOTAL ASSETS 2,476,157$        306,427$           461,562$           612,161$           721,646$           4,577,954$        

17 LIABILITIES
18 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 17,036$             -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      17,036$             
19 SALES TAX -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
20 ACCRUED EXPENSES -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
21 DEFERRED REVENUE (ON-ROLL) 50,828               13,085               13,742               18,621               22,656               118,933             
22 OTHER DEFERRED REVENUE -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
23 DUE TO OTHER SOURCES 1,296,976          -                        -                        -                        -                        1,296,976          
24 TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,364,840          13,085               13,742               18,621               22,656               1,432,944          

25 FUND BALANCE
26 NONSPENDABLE
27 PREPAID & DEPOSITS 5,696                 -                        -                        -                        -                        5,696                 
28 CAPITAL RESERVES -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
29 OPERATING CAPITAL -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
30 UNASSIGNED 1,105,622          293,342             447,820             593,540             698,990             3,139,314          
31 TOTAL FUND BALANCE 1,111,318          293,342             447,820             593,540             698,990             3,145,009          

32 TOTAL  LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE 2,476,157$        306,427$           461,562$           612,161$           721,646$           4,577,954$        

The Preserve at South Branch CDD
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2025

Page 2 l



FY 2026 FY 2026 FY 2026 VARIANCE % Actual
Adopted Month of Total Actual Over (Under) YTD /
Budget December Year-to-Date  to Budget FY Budget

1 REVENUE
2 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 973,905$          843,809$          923,077$          (50,828)$           95%
3 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT EXCESS FEES -                       -                       -                       -                       0%
4 DEVELOPER FUNDING -                       -                       -                       -                       0%
5 MISCELLANEOUS (CONTRIBUTIONS FROM POA) 22,125              -                       24,631              2,506                111%
6 TOTAL REVENUE 996,030$          843,809$          947,708$          (48,322)$           95%

7 EXPENDITURES
8 ADMINISTRATIVE
9 SUPERVISORS FEE-REGULAR MEETINGS 15,000$            800$                 2,200$              (12,800)$           15%

10 MANAGEMENT CONSULTING SERVICES                           15,450              1,288                3,863                (11,588)             25%
11 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 11,330              944                   2,833                (8,497)               25%
12 ACCOUNTING SERVICES 11,330              944                   2,832                (8,498)               25%
13 DISSEMINATION AGENT 2,500                -                       2,500                -                       100%
14 ASSESSMENT ROLL PREPARATION 5,500                458                   1,375                (4,125)               25%
15 MASS MAILING 1,800                -                       -                       (1,800)               0%
16 MEETING ROOM RENTAL 3,000                183                   379                   (2,621)               13%
17 BANKING FEES 375                   -                       -                       (375)                  0%
18 AUDITING 3,900                -                       -                       (3,900)               0%
19 REGULATORY AND PERMIT FEES 175                   -                       175                   -                       100%
20 TAX COLLECTOR/PROPERTY APPRAISER FEES 600                   -                       538                   (62)                    90%
21 LEGAL ADVERTISEMENTS                                     1,500                -                       131                   (1,369)               9%
22 ENGINEERING SERVICES 30,000              1,350                5,145                (24,855)             17%
23 LEGAL SERVICES 20,000              1,350                3,876                (16,124)             19%
24 TRUSTEE FEES 12,500              -                       9,760                (2,740)               78%
25 ARBITRAGE 1,950                -                       650                   (1,300)               33%
26 WEBSITE ADMINISTRATION 1,600                -                       1,515                (85)                    95%
27 MISCELLANEOUS 500                   -                       18                     (483)                  4%
28 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 139,010            7,317                37,790              (101,220)           27%

29 INSURANCE
30 INSURANCE - GENERAL LIABILITY 20,000              -                       15,756              (4,244)               79%
31 TOTAL INSURANCE 20,000              -                       15,756              (4,244)               79%

32 ELECTRIC UTILITY SERVICES
33 ELECTRIC 84,000              5,197                15,583              (68,417)             19%
34 STREETLIGHTS 193,790            13,133              39,400              (154,391)           20%
35 RECLAIMED WATER 7,500                616                   1,887                (5,613)               25%
36 TOTAL UTILITIES 285,290            18,946              56,869              (228,421)           20%

The Preserve at South Branch CDD
General Fund

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the period from October 1, 2025 to December 31, 2025

l



The Preserve at South Branch CDD
General Fund

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the period from October 1, 2025 to December 31, 2025

37 FIELD OPERATIONS
38 FIELD OPERATIONS 3,890                275                   825                   (3,065)               21%
39 AQUATIC MAINTENANCE 22,500              -                       5,417                (17,083)             24%
40 WETLAND MONITORING CONTRACTED 9,500                -                       -                       (9,500)               0%
41 WETLAND MAINTENANCE CONTRACTED 51,840              -                       -                       (51,840)             0%
42 FOUNTAIN MAINTENANCE CONTRACTED 20,200              3,070                5,070                (15,130)             25%
43 FOUNTAIN REPAIRS 14,000              1,311                1,311                (12,689)             9%
44 PORTER SERVICES CONTRACTED 11,000              875                   2,625                (8,375)               24%
45 ENTRANCE, WALL & FENCE MAINTENANCE 7,000                -                       -                       (7,000)               0%
46 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE 310,000            24,695              74,085              (235,915)           24%
47 LANDSCAPE REPLACEMENT/REPAIRS 22,500              2,125                4,105                (18,395)             18%
48 IRRIGATION REPAIRS 4,000                1,335                2,750                (1,250)               69%
49 MULCH 20,000              -                       -                       (20,000)             0%
50 ANNUAL FLOWER ROTATION 9,000                -                       4,200                (4,800)               47%
51 HOLIDAY LIGHTING 5,000                -                       -                       (5,000)               0%
52 PRESSURE WASHING 7,000                -                       -                       (7,000)               0%
53 STORMWATER INFRASTRUCTURE MAINTENANCE 5,000                -                       -                       (5,000)               0%
54 POND BANK REPAIR, MAINTENANCE & PLANTINGS 2,800                -                       -                       (2,800)               0%
55 SIDEWALK MAINTENANCE 3,000                -                       -                       (3,000)               0%
56 ROADWAY & SIGNAGE MAINTENANCE 3,000                -                       -                       (3,000)               0%
57 PLAYGROUND & PARK MAINTENANCE 3,000                -                       -                       (3,000)               0%
58 MISC FIELD SERVICES/CONTINGENCY 17,500              573                   10,792              (6,708)               62%
59 TOTAL FIELD OPERATIONS 551,730            34,259              111,179            (440,551)           20%

60 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 996,030$          60,522$            221,593$          (774,437)$         22%

61 EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (0)                      783,287            726,115            726,115            

62 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES & USES
63 TRANSFERS IN -                       -                       -                       -                       
64 TRANSFERS OUT -                       -                       -                       -                       
65 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES & USES -                       -                       -                       -                       

66 FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING - UNAUDITED 342,611            385,203            42,592              
67 NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (0)                      783,287            726,115            726,115            
68 FUND BALANCE - ENDING - PROJECTED 342,611$          1,111,318$       768,707$          

69 ANALYSIS OF FUND BALANCE
70 NONSPENDABLE
71 PREPAID & DEPOSITS 5,696                5,696                
72 CAPITAL RESERVES
73 OPERATING CAPITAL -                       -                       
74 UNASSIGNED 336,915            1,105,622         
75 TOTAL FUND BALANCE 342,611$          1,111,318$       

l



FY 2026 FY 2026 VARIANCE
Amended Total Actual Over (Under)

Budget Year-to-Date to Budget
1 REVENUE
2 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON ROLL (NET) 250,715$           237,630$           (13,085)$           
3 INTEREST & MISCELLANEOUS -                        -                        -                        
4 TOTAL REVENUE 250,715            237,630            (13,085)             

5 EXPENDITURES
6   FUND BALANCE CONTRIBUTION 250,715            -                        -                        
7 CONTINGENCY -                        -                        -                        
8 TOTAL EXPENDITURES -                        -                        -                        

9 EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 250,715            237,630            (13,085)             

10 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES & USES
11 TRANSFERS IN -                        -                        -                        
12 TRANSFERS OUT -                        -                        -                        
13 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES & USES -                        -                        -                        

14 FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 27,276              55,712              28,436              
15 NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 250,715            237,630            (13,085)             
16 FUND BALANCE - ENDING 277,991$           293,342$           15,351$            

17 ANALYSIS OF FUND BALANCE
18 ASSIGNED
19 FUTURE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS -                        -                        
20 WORKING CAPITAL -                        -                        
21 UNASSIGNED 277,991            293,342            
22 FUND BALANCE - ENDING 277,991$           293,342$           

The Preserve at South Branch CDD
Capital Reserve Fund (CRF)

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
For the period from October 1, 2025 to December 31, 2025

Page 5 l



FY 2026 FY 2026 VARIANCE
Adopted Actual Over (Under)
Budget Year-to-Date  to Budget 

1 REVENUE
2 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON ROLL (NET) 263,313$          249,571$          (13,742)$           
3 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - EXCESS FEES -                        -                        
4 INTEREST REVENUE -                        3,095                3,095                
5 TOTAL REVENUE 263,313            252,666            (10,647)             

6 EXPENDITURES
7 INTEREST EXPENSE
8 November 1, 2025 91,981              93,763              (1,782)               
9 May 1, 2026 -                        -                        

10 November 1, 2026 91,981              -                        91,981              
11 PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT                          
12 November 1, 2025 75,000              75,000              -                        
13 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 258,962            168,763            (90,200)             

14 EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 4,351                83,903              79,552              

15 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
16 TRANSFERS IN -                        -                        -                        
17 TRANSFERS OUT -                        -                        -                        
18 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) -                        -                        -                        

19 FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 321,695            363,916            42,221              
20 NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 4,351                83,903              79,552              
21 FUND BALANCE - ENDING 326,046$          447,820$          121,774$          

The Preserve at South Branch CDD
Debt Service Fund- Series 2018

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balance
For the period from October 1, 2025 to December 31, 2025

Page 6 l



FY 2026 FY 2026 VARIANCE
Adopted Actual Over (Under)
Budget Year-to-Date  to Budget 

1 REVENUE
2 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON ROLL (NET) 356,800$          338,179$          (18,621)$           
3 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - EXCESS FEES -                        -                        
4 INTEREST REVENUE -                        3,555                3,555                
5 TOTAL REVENUE 356,800            341,733            (15,067)             

6 EXPENDITURES
7 INTEREST EXPENSE
8 November 1, 2025 109,088            -                        109,088            
9 May 1, 2026 -                        -                        -                        

10 November 1, 2026 109,088            -                        109,088            
11 PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT                          
12 November 1, 2025 135,000            241,363            (106,363)           
13 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 353,176            241,363            (111,814)           

14 EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 3,624                100,371            96,747              

15 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
16 TRANSFERS IN -                        -                        -                        
17 TRANSFERS OUT -                        -                        -                        
18 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) -                        -                        -                        

19 FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 444,525            493,169            48,644              
20 NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 3,624                100,371            96,747              
21 FUND BALANCE - ENDING 448,149$          593,540$          145,391$          

The Preserve at South Branch CDD
Debt Service Fund- Series 2019

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balance
For the period from October 1, 2025 to December 31, 2025

Page 7 l



FY 2026 FY 2026 VARIANCE
Adopted Actual Over (Under)
Budget  Year-to-Date  to Budget 

1 REVENUE
2 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON ROLL (NET) 434,100$          411,444            (22,656)$           
3 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - EXCESS FEES -                        -                        -                        
4 INTEREST REVENUE -                        3,407                3,407                
5 TOTAL REVENUE 434,100            414,851            (19,249)             

6 EXPENDITURES
7 INTEREST EXPENSE
8 November 1, 2025 130,325            130,325            -                        
9 May 1, 2026 -                        -                        

10 November 1, 2026 130,325            -                        130,325            
11 PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT                          
12 May 1, 2026 175,000            -                        175,000            
13 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 435,650            130,325            (305,325)           

14 EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (1,550)               284,526            286,076            

15 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
16 TRANSFERS IN -                        -                        -                        
17 TRANSFERS OUT -                        (2,135)               (2,135)               
18 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) -                        (2,135)               (2,135)               

19 FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 366,400            385,660            19,260              
20 NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,550)               286,661            288,211            
21 FUND BALANCE - ENDING 364,850$          668,050            303,200$          

The Preserve at South Branch CDD
Debt Service Fund- Series 2021

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balance
For the period from October 1, 2025 to December 31, 2025

Page 8 l



Date Ref. Num Name Memo Deposits Disbursements Balance
09/30/2025 EOY Balance 489,837.98
10/01/2025 01ACH100125 Duke Energy 000 State Road 54 LITE Sbranch PH1 A&B SL 08.06.25-09.04.25 7,056.77 482,781.21
10/01/2025 100505 GHS Environmental Invoice: 2025-615 (Reference: Aquatic Maintenance Program 2025-2026.  ) 1,875.00 480,906.21
10/01/2025 100506 Cepra Landscape Invoice: TPA5984 (Reference: Landscape maintenance Sep.  ) 24,695.00 456,211.21
10/02/2025 100507 Blue Water Aquatics, Inc. Invoice: 34264 (Reference: Fountain Inspection & PM Cleaning.  )  Invoice: 34263 (Reference: fou... 2,334.59 453,876.62
10/02/2025 100508 Pasco Sheriff's Office Invoice: I-20259-12118 (Reference: Security.  ) 2,552.00 451,324.62
10/02/2025 100509 Blue Water Aquatics, Inc. Invoice: 34310 (Reference: fountain troubleshooting services.  ) 756.00 450,568.62
10/02/2025 100510 Office Pride Commercial Cleaning Services Invoice: Inv-285147 (Reference: Day Porter Services 3x per week.  ) 875.00 449,693.62
10/03/2025 01ACH100325 Duke Energy 000 State Road 54 LITE S Branch RDWY 08.07.25- 09.05.25 3,790.61 445,903.01
10/07/2025 100511 Office Pride Commercial Cleaning Services Invoice: Inv-285380 (Reference: CC Fees- Avid Pay.  ) 17.50 445,885.51
10/07/2025 100512 Vesta District Services Invoice: 428941 (Reference: Oct25 Management fees.  ) 3,909.00 441,976.51
10/08/2025 1509 Site Masters of Florida, LLC Replaced broken curb and remediate the infiltration at curb inlet 4,800.00 437,176.51
10/08/2025 1510 Egis Insurance & Risk Advisors Insurance FY  Policy #100125331 10/01/25 - 10/01/26 15,756.00 421,420.51
10/09/2025 01ACH100925 Duke Energy 00000 S Branch Blvd 4B 08.15.25- 09.15.25 638.99 420,781.52
10/09/2025 02ACH100925 Duke Energy 0000 S Branch Blvd Lite Prsrv 5B- 08.15.25- 09.15.25 840.16 419,941.36
10/09/2025 03ACH100925 Duke Energy 00 South Branch Blvd. LITE 08.15.25- 09.15.25 806.64 419,134.72
10/14/2025 1511 David H. Silverstein BOS Meeting 10/2/25 200.00 418,934.72
10/14/2025 1512 Robert Howard BOS Meeting 10/2/25 200.00 418,734.72
10/14/2025 1513 Thomas Handrick, Jr. BOS Meeting 10/2/25 200.00 418,534.72
10/14/2025 100513 Cepra Landscape Invoice: TPA6124 (Reference: Light Mulching of South Branch Blvd.  )  Invoice: TPA6182 (Referenc... 5,180.50 413,354.22
10/14/2025 100514 Brletic Dvorak, Inc Invoice: 2139 (Reference: Engineering service.  ) 2,775.00 410,579.22
10/14/2025 100515 Vesta District Services Invoice: 428984 (Reference: FY?2026 Dissmination Agent Fee.  )  Invoice: 429039 (Reference: Bill... 4,890.23 405,688.99
10/14/2025 100516 Kilinski Van Wyk PLLC Invoice: 13345 (Reference: Legal services.  ) 1,567.58 404,121.41
10/22/2025 01ACH102225 Pasco County - Utilities Services 16236 Weathered Windmill Terrrace 08.18.25- 09.17.25 49.48 404,071.93
10/22/2025 02ACH102225 Pasco County - Utilities Services 3048 Suncoast Blend Dr 08.18.25- 09.17.25 204.93 403,867.00
10/22/2025 03ACH102225 Pasco County - Utilities Services 16546 Secret Meadow Dr  08.18.25- 09.17.25 10.60 403,856.40
10/22/2025 04ACH102225 Pasco County - Utilities Services 15953 SR 54/South Branch RCL 08.18.25- 09.17.25 339.39 403,517.01
10/27/2025 01ACH102725 Duke Energy 2069 S Branch Blvd- Entrance 09.03.25- 10.01.25 40.85 403,476.16
10/27/2025 02ACH102725 Duke Energy 16159 SOFT FERN TRCE 09.03.25- 10.01.25 (Fountain) 175.15 403,301.01
10/27/2025 03ACH102725 Duke Energy 3234 LIVING CORAL DR 09.03.25- 10.01.25 (Fountain) 30.80 403,270.21
10/27/2025 04ACH102725 Duke Energy 16236 Weathered Windmill TE- Irrigation 09.03.25- 10.01.25 30.80 403,239.41
10/27/2025 05ACH102725 Duke Energy 3003 S Branch Blvd Access and BBall Ct  09.03.25- 10.01.25 30.80 403,208.61
10/27/2025 06ACH102725 Duke Energy 2574 Storybrook Preserve Dr- Fountain 09.03.25- 10.01.25 30.80 403,177.81
10/27/2025 07ACH102725 Duke Energy 3000 Living Coral Dr - irrigation 09.03.25- 10.01.25 30.80 403,147.01
10/27/2025 08ACH102725 Duke Energy 3246 Living Coral Dr- Irrigation 09.03.25- 10.01.25 30.80 403,116.21
10/27/2025 09ACH102725 Duke Energy 16080 Tuscany Hillside Rd- Fountain 09.03.25- 10.01.25 30.80 403,085.41
10/27/2025 10ACH102725 Duke Energy 16108 Tuscany Hillside Rd- Fountain 09.03.25- 10.01.25 218.32 402,867.09
10/27/2025 11ACH102725 Duke Energy 2887 Living Coral Dr.- Fountain  09.03.25- 10.01.25 398.44 402,468.65
10/27/2025 12ACH102725 Duke Energy 2853 Suncoast Blend Dr- Fountain   09.03.25- 10.01.25 385.38 402,083.27
10/27/2025 13ACH102725 Duke Energy 2539 S Branch Blvd- Fountain 09.03.25- 10.01.25 2,277.56 399,805.71
10/27/2025 14ACH102725 Duke Energy 15935 Deep Ravine Ln - Fountain  09.03.25- 10.01.25 295.41 399,510.30
10/27/2025 15ACH102725 Duke Energy 16090 Secret Meadow Dr- Fountain  09.03.25- 10.01.25 197.24 399,313.06
10/27/2025 16ACH102725 Duke Energy 3410 S BRANCH BLVD 09.03.25- 10.01.25  (Fountain) 259.78 399,053.28
10/27/2025 17ACH102725 Duke Energy 15883 Deep Ravine Ln- Fountain 09.03.25- 10.01.25 209.94 398,843.34
10/27/2025 18ACH102725 Duke Energy 3194 TUSCON WIND PL 09.03.25- 10.01.25 (Fountain) 229.51 398,613.83
10/29/2025 01ACH102925 Duke Energy 15501 SWEET SPRINGS BN 09.03.25- 10.01.25 (Fountain) 153.93 398,459.90
10/30/2025 100517 Business Observer Invoice: 25-02285P (Reference: Public board meeting- legal Advertisement.  ) 70.00 398,389.90
10/30/2025 100518 Cepra Landscape Invoice: TPA6217 (Reference: Work Order: 51483  Natural Area Pruning.  ) 10,218.60 388,171.30
10/30/2025 100519 SchoolNow Invoice: INV-SN-1096 (Reference: Website Hosting.  ) 1,515.00 386,656.30
10/30/2025 100520 GHS Environmental Invoice: 2025-669 (Reference: Aquatic Maintenance Program 2025-2026.  ) 1,875.00 384,781.30
10/31/2025 01ACH103125 Duke Energy 000 State Road 54 LITE Sbranch PH1 A&B SL 09.05.25- 10.03.25 7,056.77 377,724.53

#REF! End of Month #REF! #REF! #REF!
11/03/2025 Deposit 9,598.00 387,322.53
11/03/2025 100521 Cepra Landscape Invoice: TPA6128 (Reference: OCTOBER BILLING Landscape Maintenance.  )  Invoice: TPA6247 (Refere... 26,795.00 360,527.53
11/03/2025 01ACH110325 Duke Energy 000 State Road 54 LITE S Branch RDWY 09.06.25- 10.06.25 3,790.61 356,736.92
11/06/2025 100522 Cepra Landscape Invoice: TPA6273 (Reference: Repair of valve in back left conservation area including 1 and half... 3,515.00 353,221.92
11/06/2025 100523 Office Pride Commercial Cleaning Services Invoice: Inv-289775 (Reference: Day Porter Services 3x per week.  ) 875.00 352,346.92
11/06/2025 Deposit 76.48 352,423.40
11/06/2025 Deposit 21,584.96 374,008.36
11/10/2025 1514 Anthony Snyder BOS Meeting 11/6/25 200.00 373,808.36
11/10/2025 1515 David H. Silverstein BOS Meeting 11/6/25 200.00 373,608.36
11/10/2025 1516 Robert Howard BOS Meeting 11/6/25 200.00 373,408.36
11/10/2025 1517 Thomas Handrick, Jr. BOS Meeting 11/6/25 200.00 373,208.36
11/10/2025 100524 Brletic Dvorak, Inc Invoice: 2175 (Reference: Engineering service.  ) 2,175.00 371,033.36
11/10/2025 100525 Vesta District Services Invoice: 429509 (Reference: Monthly Management fees.  ) 3,909.00 367,124.36
11/10/2025 100526 Blue Water Aquatics, Inc. Invoice: 34436 (Reference: Fountain inspection and cleaning.  ) 1,000.00 366,124.36

The Preserve at South Branch CDD
Check Register - FY 2026

Page 9 l



Date Ref. Num Name Memo Deposits Disbursements Balance

The Preserve at South Branch CDD
Check Register - FY 2026

11/10/2025 01ACH111025 Duke Energy 00 South Branch Blvd. LITE 9.16.25- 10.15.25 806.64 365,317.72
11/10/2025 02ACH111025 Duke Energy 0000 S Branch Blvd Lite Prsrv 5B- 09.16.25- 10.15.25 840.16 364,477.56
11/10/2025 03ACH111025 Duke Energy 00000 S Branch Blvd 4B 09.16.25- 10.15.25 638.99 363,838.57
11/10/2025 Deposit 0.03 363,838.60
11/12/2025 100527 GHS Environmental Invoice: 2025-700 (Reference: Control Structure Maintenance.  ) 2,000.00 361,838.60
11/14/2025 Deposit 62,130.74 423,969.34
11/14/2025 Deposit 17.50 423,986.84
11/17/2025 100528 Business Observer Invoice: 25-02438P (Reference: Legal Advertising - Board Meeting.  ) 61.25 423,925.59
11/20/2025 Deposit 76,783.70 500,709.29
11/21/2025 1518 FLORIDA DEPT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY FY 2025/2026 Special District State Fee 175.00 500,534.29
11/21/2025 1519 Mike Fasano, Pasco County Tax Collector 538.08 499,996.21
11/24/2025 01ACH112425 Pasco County - Utilities Services 16236 Weathered Windmill Terrrace 09.17.25- 10.16.25 86.75 499,909.46
11/24/2025 02ACH112425 Pasco County - Utilities Services 3048 Suncoast Blend Dr 09.17.25- 10.16.25 200.99 499,708.47
11/24/2025 03ACH112425 Pasco County - Utilities Services 15953 SR 54/South Branch RCL  09.17.25- 10.16.25 367.64 499,340.83
11/24/2025 05ACH112425 Pasco County - Utilities Services 16546 Secret Meadow Dr  09.17.25- 10.16.25 11.00 499,329.83
11/25/2025 100529 Vesta District Services Invoice: 429444 (Reference: billable Expenses Oct25- meeting room.  ) 195.81 499,134.02
11/25/2025 100530 Kilinski Van Wyk PLLC Invoice: 13553 (Reference: legal services.  ) 2,526.16 496,607.86
11/25/2025 100531 GHS Environmental Invoice: 2025-705 (Reference: Aquatic Maintenance.  )  Invoice: 2025-702 (Reference: Control Str... 2,000.00 494,607.86
11/25/2025 100532 GHS Environmental Invoice: 2025-737 (Reference: Aquatic Maintenance Program 2025-2026.  ) 1,875.00 492,732.86
11/26/2025 Deposit 24,902.76 517,635.62
11/28/2025 01ACH112825 Duke Energy 2069 S Branch Blvd- Entrance 10.02.25- 11.03.25 66.44 517,569.18
11/28/2025 02ACH112825 Duke Energy 16159 SOFT FERN TRCE10.02.25- 11.03.25 (Fountain) 195.91 517,373.27
11/28/2025 03ACH112825 Duke Energy 16236 Weathered Windmill TE- Irrigation 10.02.25- 11.03.25 30.80 517,342.47
11/28/2025 04ACH112825 Duke Energy 3003 S Branch Blvd Access and BBall Ct  10.02.25- 11.03.25 30.80 517,311.67
11/28/2025 05ACH112825 Duke Energy 2574 Storybrook Preserve Dr- Fountain 10.02.25- 11.03.25 30.80 517,280.87
11/28/2025 06ACH112825 Duke Energy 3000 Living Coral Dr - irrigation 10.02.25- 11.03.25 30.80 517,250.07
11/28/2025 07ACH112825 Duke Energy 3246 Living Coral Dr- Irrigation 10.02.25- 11.03.25 30.80 517,219.27
11/28/2025 08ACH112825 Duke Energy 16080 Tuscany Hillside Rd- Fountain 10.02.25- 11.03.25 30.80 517,188.47
11/28/2025 09ACH112825 Duke Energy 16108 Tuscany Hillside Rd- Fountain 10.02.25-11.03.25 246.55 516,941.92
11/28/2025 10ACH112825 Duke Energy 2887 Living Coral Dr.- Fountain  10.02.25- 11.03.25 451.46 516,490.46
11/28/2025 11ACH112825 Duke Energy 2853 Suncoast Blend Dr- Fountain   10.02.25- 11.03.25 407.78 516,082.68
11/28/2025 12ACH112825 Duke Energy 2539 S Branch Blvd- Fountain 10.02.25- 11.03.25 1,893.41 514,189.27
11/28/2025 13ACH112825 Duke Energy 15935 Deep Ravine Ln - Fountain  10.02.25- 11.03.25 335.70 513,853.57
11/28/2025 14ACH112825 Duke Energy 16090 Secret Meadow Dr- Fountain  10.02.25- 11.03.25 222.14 513,631.43
11/28/2025 15ACH112825 Duke Energy 3234 LIVING CORAL DR 10.02.25- 11.03.25 (Fountain) 282.68 513,348.75
11/28/2025 16ACH112825 Duke Energy 3410 S BRANCH BLVD 10.02.25- 11.03.25  (Fountain) 296.57 513,052.18
11/28/2025 17ACH112825 Duke Energy 15883 Deep Ravine Ln- Fountain 10.02.25- 11.03.25 237.54 512,814.64
11/28/2025 19ACH112825 Duke Energy 15501 SWEET SPRINGS BN 10.02.25- 11.03.25 (Fountain) 245.91 512,568.73
11/28/2025 20ACH112825 Duke Energy 3194 TUSCON WIND PL 10.01.25- 11.03.25 (Fountain) 261.63 512,307.10
11/30/2025 End of Month 195,094.17 60,511.60 512,307.10
12/02/2025 100533 Cepra Landscape Invoice: TPA6293 (Reference: Nov Landscape billing.  ) 24,695.00 487,612.10
12/02/2025 100534 Blue Water Aquatics, Inc. Invoice: 34590 (Reference: Fountain Inspection & PM  Cleaning.  ) 1,000.00 486,612.10
12/02/2025 100535 Office Pride Commercial Cleaning Services Invoice: Inv-293363 (Reference: Day Porter Services 3x per week.  ) 875.00 485,737.10
12/03/2025 01ACH120325 Duke Energy 000 State Road 54 LITE S Branch RDWY 10.07.25- 11.06.25 3,790.61 481,946.49
12/03/2025 02ACH120325 Duke Energy 000 State Road 54 LITE Sbranch PH1 A&B SL 10.04.25- 11.05.25 7,056.77 474,889.72
12/05/2025 Deposit 1,835,236.71 2,310,126.43
12/08/2025 01ACG120825 Duke Energy 0000 S Branch Blvd Lite Prsrv 5B- 10.16.25- 11.13.25 840.16 2,309,286.27
12/08/2025 02ACH120825 Duke Energy 00000 S Branch Blvd 4B 10.16.25- 11.13.25 638.99 2,308,647.28
12/08/2025 03ACH120825 Duke Energy 00 South Branch Blvd. LITE 10.16.25- 11.13.25 806.64 2,307,840.64
12/09/2025 1520 Anthony Snyder BOS Meeting 12/4/25 200.00 2,307,640.64
12/09/2025 1521 David H. Silverstein BOS Meeting 12/4/25 200.00 2,307,440.64
12/09/2025 1522 Robert Howard BOS Meeting 12/4/25 200.00 2,307,240.64
12/09/2025 1523 Thomas Handrick, Jr. BOS Meeting 12/4/25 200.00 2,307,040.64
12/10/2025 100536 Brletic Dvorak, Inc Invoice: 2218 (Reference: Engineering Services.  ) 1,620.00 2,305,420.64
12/10/2025 100537 Cepra Landscape Invoice: TPA6460 (Reference: Repair of broken valve.  ) 635.00 2,304,785.64
12/11/2025 100538 LLS Tax Solutions, Inc Invoice: 003957 (Reference: Arbitrage Services.  ) 650.00 2,304,135.64
12/11/2025 Deposit 118,944.99 2,423,080.63
12/11/2025 Deposit 1,238.58 2,424,319.21
12/15/2025 100539 Cepra Landscape Invoice: TPA6471 (Reference: Remove Dead Palm.  ) 1,775.00 2,422,544.21
12/15/2025 100540 Vesta District Services Invoice: 429997 (Reference: Management Fees Dec 25.  ) 3,909.00 2,418,635.21
12/17/2025 100541 Cepra Landscape Invoice: TPA6477 (Reference: Repair broken mainline.  ) 700.00 2,417,935.21
12/18/2025 100542 Cepra Landscape Invoice: TPA6480 (Reference: Stump Grinding.  ) 350.00 2,417,585.21
12/18/2025 Deposit 1,226.76 2,418,811.97
12/18/2025 Deposit 17,774.41 2,436,586.38
12/19/2025 100543 Kilinski Van Wyk PLLC Invoice: 13788 (Reference: Legal Services Nov 25.  ) 1,350.00 2,435,236.38
12/22/2025 01ACH122225 Pasco County - Utilities Services 16546 Secret Meadow Dr  10.16.25- 11.14.25 11.00 2,435,225.38

Page 10 l



Date Ref. Num Name Memo Deposits Disbursements Balance

The Preserve at South Branch CDD
Check Register - FY 2026

12/22/2025 02ACH122225 Pasco County - Utilities Services 16236 Weathered Windmill Terrrace 10.16.25- 11.14.25 63.52 2,435,161.86
12/22/2025 03ACH122225 Pasco County - Utilities Services 3048 Suncoast Blend Dr 10.16.25- 11.14.25 127.26 2,435,034.60
12/22/2025 04ACH122225 Pasco County - Utilities Services 15953 SR 54/South Branch RCL  10.16.25- 11.14.25 414.10 2,434,620.50
12/23/2025 100544 Romaner Graphics Invoice: 22940 (Reference: Replace lap splice kit on Left Curve sign.  ) 159.00 2,434,461.50
12/29/2025 01ACH122925 Duke Energy 2069 S Branch Blvd- Entrance 11.03.25 - 12.1.25 60.59 2,434,400.91
12/29/2025 02ACH122925 Duke Energy 16159 SOFT FERN TRCE 11.03.25 - 12.1.25 (Fountain) 168.30 2,434,232.61
12/29/2025 03ACH122925 Duke Energy 3246 Living Coral Dr- Irrigation 11.03.25 - 12.1.25 30.80 2,434,201.81
12/29/2025 04ACH122925 Duke Energy 16236 Weathered Windmill TE- Irrigation 11.03.25 - 12.1.25 30.80 2,434,171.01
12/29/2025 05ACH122925 Duke Energy 3000 Living Coral Dr - irrigation 11.03.25 - 12.1.25 30.80 2,434,140.21
12/29/2025 06ACH122925 Duke Energy 16080 Tuscany Hillside Rd- Fountain 11.03.25 - 12.1.25 30.80 2,434,109.41
12/29/2025 07ACH122925 Duke Energy 2574 Storybrook Preserve Dr- Fountain 11.03.25 - 12.1.25 30.80 2,434,078.61
12/29/2025 08ACH122925 Duke Energy 3003 S Branch Blvd Access and BBall Ct  11.03.25 - 12.1.25 30.80 2,434,047.81
12/29/2025 09ACH122925 Duke Energy 16108 Tuscany Hillside Rd- Fountain 11.03.25 - 12.1.25 212.95 2,433,834.86
12/29/2025 10ACH122925 Duke Energy 2887 Living Coral Dr.- Fountain 11.03.25 - 12.1.25 388.23 2,433,446.63
12/29/2025 11ACH122925 Duke Energy 2853 Suncoast Blend Dr- Fountain  11.03.25 - 12.1.25 397.11 2,433,049.52
12/29/2025 12ACH122925 Duke Energy 2539 S Branch Blvd- Fountain 11.03.25 - 12.1.25 1,959.29 2,431,090.23
12/29/2025 13ACH122925 Duke Energy 15935 Deep Ravine Ln - Fountain  11.03.25 - 12.1.25 285.86 2,430,804.37
12/29/2025 15ACH122925 Duke Energy 16090 Secret Meadow Dr- Fountain  11.03.25 - 12.1.25 192.04 2,430,612.33
12/29/2025 16ACH122925 Duke Energy 3234 LIVING CORAL DR 11.03.25 - 12.1.25 (Fountain) 446.27 2,430,166.06
12/29/2025 17ACH122925 Duke Energy 3410 S BRANCH BLVD 11.03.25 - 12.1.25  (Fountain) 256.59 2,429,909.47
12/29/2025 18ACH122925 Duke Energy 15883 Deep Ravine Ln- Fountain 11.03.25 - 12.1.25 204.76 2,429,704.71
12/29/2025 19ACH122925 Duke Energy 3194 TUSCON WIND PL 11.03.25 - 12.1.25(Fountain) 226.84 2,429,477.87
12/29/2025 20ACH122925 Duke Energy 15501 SWEET SPRINGS BN 11.03.25 - 12.1.25 (Fountain) 213.28 2,429,264.59
12/30/2025 100545 Cepra Landscape Invoice: TPA6395 (Reference: Landscape Maintenance Dec 25.  ) 24,695.00 2,404,569.59
12/31/2025 01ACH123125 Duke Energy 000 State Road 54 LITE S Branch RDWY 11.07.25- 12.04.25 3,790.61 2,400,778.98
12/31/2025 02ACH123125 Duke Energy 000 State Road 54 LITE Sbranch PH1 A&B SL 11.06.25- 12.03.25 7,056.77 2,393,722.21
12/31/2025 End of Month 1,974,421.45 93,006.34 2,393,722.21

Page 11 l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



 

EXHIBIT 17 

  

l



l



12/8/25Heath Beckett

l



l



l


	@1CL - Residence Inn
	@2026-02-05 Draft Agenda - PSB 2-3
	@3000 PSB Map - BDI 07-2024
	01 EXHIBIT COVERS 1
	01a DE - PSB Engineer's Report - February 2026
	02 EXHIBIT COVERS 2
	02a DE Labor Rates 1-1-26
	03 EXHIBIT COVERS 3
	03a 15870 Mauvewood - drainage complaint
	04 EXHIBIT COVERS 4
	04a PSB Field Requests - 1-29
	04a1 #303
	04a3 #301a
	04a3 #301b
	04a5 #298
	05 EXHIBIT COVERS 5
	05a PSB - Aquatic Maintenance Log 1-29-26
	06 EXHIBIT COVERS 6
	06a GHS Proposal #26-205_PSB - Townhomes Brazilian Pepper Treatment
	6b WOE A COVER
	6b1 WOE-A GHS - PSB Midge Fly and Mosquito Planning Considerations - Jan 2026
	07 EXHIBIT COVERS 7
	07a Cepra - PSB Landscape Updates through 1-26
	08 EXHIBIT COVERS 8
	08a Cepra - PSB East wall bi-annual cleanup #52952 - $5,000.00
	09 EXHIBIT COVERS 9
	09a Cepra - PSB Phase 1 Blvd Ehancement #51796 - $9,975.00
	10 EXHIBIT COVERS 10
	10a BWA - PSB Fountain Reports
	11 EXHIBIT COVERS 11
	11a Blue Water Aquatics - PSB Replace Fountain 4 Capacitor Box #FA-2025-1159 - $632.24
	12 EXHIBIT COVERS 12
	12B WOE B EXHIBIT COVER
	12b1 WOE-B HOA - CDD Water Meter Transfer - previously presented
	HOA - CDD Water Meter Transfer msg
	CDD Meters
	PCU Account 1060595
	PCU Account 1060610
	PCU Account 1156335

	13 EXHIBIT COVERS 13
	13a - Sidewalk Repair at 2940 Suncoast Blend Dr (Frontier)
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	13b Suncoast sidewalk
	14 EXHIBIT COVERS 14
	14a ThePreserveAtSouthBranchCDD - 13FM Quarterly
	14b ThePreserveAtSouthBranchCDD - WFM Monthly
	15 EXHIBIT COVERS 15
	15a 2025-12-04 PSB Meeting Minutes - DRAFT
	16 EXHIBIT COVERS 16
	16a PSB December 2025 Fin
	Cover
	BS
	GF
	CRF
	DSF 2018
	DSF 2019
	DSF 2021
	Check Register

	16b PSB November 2025 ck reg
	16c PSB December 2025 ck reg
	17 EXHIBIT COVERS 17
	17a Ratify Cepra - PSB S Branch Blvd Irrigation Repair #52965 -$635
	17b Ratify Cepra - PSB mainlin repair at end of S Branch Blvd #53124 - $



